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CLIFF OXFORD

1482 Fallabrook Court
Acworth, Georqia 30101

April 8, 1996 IY)(~ Ly
Federal Election Commission
999 E Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20004

Dear Commissioners:

I have reason to believe that Michael Coles of 2450 Kirk Lane,
Kennesaw,, Georgia 30144 has violated the provisions of the Federal
Election Campaign Act (hereinafter, "the Act") (1) by failing to
designate a principal campaign committee within 15 days after he
became a candidate for Congress, (2) by failing to cause such a
principal campaign committee to register with the Commission by
filing a Statement of organization, (3) by failing to establish a
separate campaign checking account for the deposit of campaign
receipts and the payment of campaign expenditures, (4) by
commingling campaign funds and personal funds,, and (5) by not
having a legally qualified campaign committee as of March 31, 1996
and thereby violating the requirement to file a report of campaign
contributions and expenditures for the first calendar quarter of
the 1996 election year, during which time he was a candidate for
Congress.

In light of the large amount already expended by Mr. Coles in
his Congressional campaign (in excess of $50,000), the even larger
amount contributed to that campaign (in excess of $300,000 by Mr.
Coles' own account), and Mr. Coles' repeated declarations over the
past seven weeks or more that he is running for Congress, these
violations are of the most serious nature in that they subvert the
entire principal of disclosure which underlies federal regulation
of campaign finances.

Mr. Coles has broken these laws knowingly and willingly. He
has violated the very f irst rules governing congressional campaigns
enumerated in the first paragraph of the first section of the first
chapter of the Commission's "Campaign Guide for Congressional
Candidates and Committees." Thus, he cannot claim as a defense
that he has merely violated obscure provisions of which he was
unaware. Moreover, when Mr. Coles net with me on March 28, 1996,
the following exchanqe occurred:

Michael Cos: Have you tiled your FEC reports?
jlt + IF ordj: Y es

Michat-'- -oles: rvivefl't tiled amv of thait shit yet.
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These offenses clearly constitute either an intentional
violation of, or a flagrant disregard for, federal campaign finance
law.

By failing to register and disclose such extensive campaiqn
activities, Mr. Coles has done nothing less than attempt to set
himself above the law.

This letter constitutes an official complaint, and I
respectfully request that an investigation be conducted
immediately.

An individual becomes a candidate, and thus triggers the
registration and reporting requirements of the Act, when he or she
raises or spends more than $5,000 for a campaign. 2 U.S.C. §
431(2). Funds received or payments made "solely for the purpose of
determining whether an individual should become a candidate" are
exempt from the definitions of "contribution" and "expenditure"
under the Act and do not trigger these requirements. 11 C.F.R. j§
100.7(b)(1)(i), l00.8(b)(1)(i). However, this exemption does not
apply once an individual has indicated that he or she has decided

CIW to become a candidate. 11 C.F.R. §§ 100.7(b)(1)(ii),
100.8(b)(1)(ii). And federal law is crystal clear that an
individual "has decided to become a candidate" when "the individual
makes . . . oral statements that refer to him or her as a candidate
for a particular office." 11 C.F.R. §§ 100.7(b)(1)(ii)(C),
100.8(b)(1)(ii)(C).

Michael Coles clearly indicated that he had decided to become
a candidate when he called David J. Worley during the week of
February 19, 1996 and stated that he was running for Congress. See
Worley Affidavit, attached hereto. His March 9, 1996 campaign
remarks at the Cobb County Democratic Breakfast and his March 19,

-. 1996 remarks at a meeting of the Cherokee County Democratic Party
further confirm his candidate status at that early date. See
Johnnie McKenzie, Patrick McKenzie, and Oxford Affidavits, attached
hereto.

Furthermore, I have been informed -- and it is widely known in
political circles -- that Mr. Coles retained a number of political
consultants and campaign staff members in the latter half of
February or the beginning of March 1996. These include the
political polling firm Cooper & Secrest Associates, the political
media firm Shrum, Devine & Donilon, campaign manager Kate Head, and
press secretary Beth Shipp, inter alia. Mr. Coles himself informed
me on March 28, 1996 that he had already caused two polls to be
done for his campaign. See Oxford Affidavit. The accumulation of
such an extensive campaign team and the instigation of such
campaiqn act.vities in February and/or March further substantiate
Mr. Coles' status as an active and confirmed candidate.
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As a result of these statements and actions by Mr. Coles, the
so-called "testing the waters" exemption has been inapplicable to
his activities for more than six weeks.

Therefore, once Coles spent or raised more than $5,000 for his
campaign, he was a candidate subject to the registration and
reporting requirements of the Act.

Michael Coles stated on March 28, 1996 that he had already
spent in excess of $50,000 on his campaign for Congress and that
his campaign contributions would surpass $300,000 later that same
day. See Oxford Affidavit. He was, thus, well above the $5,000
threshold making him a candidate and triggering registration and
reporting requirements under the Act.

Coles was required to designate a principal campaign committee
within 15 days after becoming a candidate by raising or spending
$5,000. 11 C.F.R. §S 101.1(a) and 102.12(a).

Mr. Coles' failure to file the reports required by federal law
make it impossible to ascertain the precise date upon which his
contributions or expenditures exceeded $5,000 without investigatory
authority. However, given the nature and size' of the
contributions and expenditures which Colas has undertaken to date, 2

and his statement that he had not made any of the required filings
related to his Congressional campaign,' the Commission clearly has
cause to believe that Mr. Coles failed to designate a principal
campaign committee within 15 days after becoming a candidate as
required by 11 C.F.R. §S 101.1(a) and 102.12(a).

By Coles' own account, as of March 28, his expenditures
were more than 10 times greater than the initial filing threshold.
Moreover, if Coles' statement that his contributions to his
campaign would go over the $300,000 mark later that day was not a
mere idle boast, then his contributions amounted to more than 60
times the amount triggering registration and reporting
requirements. See Oxford Affidavit.

Coles' expenditures to date have apparently included, but
may not be limited to, consultants' fees, staff, overhead, and
polling expenses. These undoubtedly exceeded $5,000 on the date
that he paid for his first poll, and may have done so earlier if he
paid retainers to either his pollster or media firm prior to that
date. Since Coles indicated that he had already undertaken a
second poll and spent more than $50,000 as of March 28, his first
poll and/or first S5,000 in spending on other campaign activities
would clearly have been accomplished well before that date.

See Oxforl A:tidavlt.

...........
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Evidence of the date upon which Mr. Coles exceeded $5,000 in
expenditures may be obtained by the Coumission through formal means
from Coles' campaign consultants, campaign staff, and vendors as
well as from Coles personally. Such evidence would include
contracts signed and financial records of payment and receipt of
retainer and consulting fees, polling charges, salaries, hotel
bills and expense reimbursements, inter alia.'

Due to the vast expanse of time by which Coles appears to have
failed to meet the requirement to designate a committee, it is
probable that he has violated the provision requiring a Statement
of Organization from that committee as well. 11 C.F.R. S 102.1(a)
requires that the principal campaign committee register within i0
days after it has been designated by the candidate. Coles' failure
to file a timely Statement of Candidacy would appear to have placed
his campaign in violation of this Statement of Organization
requirement.

NColes' extensive campaign expenditures without forming,
designating, or registering a campaign committee also make it
likely that he has violated the requirement that a separate
campaign account must be established once an individual becomes a

C'4 candidate. 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.10 and 103.3(a).

Campaign funds must not be commingled with personal funds of
any individual. 11 C.F.R. § 102.15. Coles' failure to comply with
the basic registration and reporting requirements of federal
campaign finance law place him in violation of this provision of
federal law as well if, as is likely, his extensive campaign
expenditures have come directly from personal funds. (Since Coles
has neither designated nor registered a campaign committee, it is
unlikely that he set up a separate campaign account for such a
committee.)

Finally, the fact that Michael Coles became a candidate for
Congress and expended in excess of $50,000 in furtherance of his
candidacy during the first calendar quarter of 1996 would obligate
his principal campaign committee as of March 31, 1996 to file a
quarterly report by April 15. 11 C.F.R. 104.5(a)(1)(iii).

Cooper & Secrest may be contacted for inquiries and
requests for production of documents dt (703) 683-7990, 228 S.
Washington Street 0330, Alexandria, Virqlnia 22314. Shrum, Devine
& Donilon may be contacted at 202) 337-9600, 2141 Wisconsin
Avenue, Suite J, Washinqton, D.C. 200t'. Ms. Head and Ms. Shipp
may be reached at the Coles for Conqress campaiqn headquarters
77Q] 51-l99t-. Ms. Shipp may also be reached at 770) 424-6330,

Room 130, the Windsor inn, cobb Parkway. Kennesaw, Georgia
30152, which hotel niy aise possess relevant evidence if Ms.
Shipp's expense- there were ;xiiiJ I re,-t by Mr . Coles and/or tho
Canpa o n.



Coles* failure to even have a legally designated and registered
principal campaign committee as of March 31, 1996 means that he is
in automatic violation of this provision: his violations of
federal law are so gross that his campaign does not even have the
necessary vehicle to file a proper report by April 15 should this
complaint or subsequent action by the Commission prompt him to do
SO.

By expending vast sums of money and actively campaigning for
Congress for such an extended period of time without abiding by the
laws which govern all federal candidates and campaigns, Michael
Coles has clearly and flagrantly violated federal election law.

Absent prompt action by the Commission, there is every reason
to believe that such illegal acts will continue through this
election season and in future years. I therefore request your
immediate attention to this complaint.

Sincerely,

Cliff or

Sworn to 4ko subscribed before me
this Ath day of April 1996.

Notary blic

-7
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AFFIDAVIT

PERSONALLY APPEARED before no, an officer duly authorized by

law to administer oaths, DAVID J. WORLEY, who after being first

duly sworn, states:

1. My name is David J. Worley, and I am competent in all

respects to testify regarding matters set forth herein. I an an

attorney, and my office is located at 1000 Equitable Building, 100

04 Peachtree Street, Atlanta, Georgia 30303. I give this Affidavit

voluntarily.

2. I received a telephone call at my office during the week

of February 19, 1996 from Michael Coles. During the course of this

phone call, Mr. Coles told me that he was running for Congress.

The foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge

'Ks and belief.

DAVID J. WOEL

Sworn to and subscribed before
me this ' th day of April, 1996.

Notary Public



SIATZ OF G2PIA

couny OF

AFFIDAVIT

PERSONALLY APPEARED before me, an officer duly authorized by

law to administer oaths, JOHDMIE NCDENZIE, who after being first

duly sworn, states:

1. Ny name is Johnnie McKenzie, and I am competent in all

0D respects to testify reqarding matters set forth herein. I qive

this Affidavit voluntarily.

CN 2. I was present at the Cobb County Democratic Breakfast held

the morning of Saturday March 9, 1996 at Kiefer's Restaurant. At

this breakfast meeting, I personally observed Michael Coles state

that he was running for Congress.

The foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge

and belief.

JOHNNIE NCKENIf

Sworn to/end subscribed before
me this _ Ith day of April, 1996.

Notdry Public
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AFFIDAVIT

PERSONALLY APPEARED before me, an officer duly authorized by

law to administer oaths, PATRICK MCKENZIE, who after being first

duly sworn, states:

1. My name is Patrick McKenzie, and I am competent in all

respects to testify regarding matters set forth herein. I give

this Affidavit voluntarily.

2. I was present at the Cobb County Democratic Breakfast held

the morning of Saturday March 9, 1996 at Kiefer's Restaurant. At

this breakfast meeting, I personally observed Michael Coles state

that he was running for Congress.

N3. I was present at the Cherokee County Democratic Committee

meeting on the evening of March 19, 1996. At this meeting, I

personally observed Michael Coles state that he was running for
C

Congress.

The foregoing is true and correct to the best of my krowledge

and belief.

PATRICK MCKtNZIE

Sworn to and subscribed before
me this _..th day of April, 1996.

Notary Public
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AFFIDAVIT

PERSONALLY APPEARED before me, an officer duly authorized by
law to administer oaths, CLIFF OXFORD, who after being first duly
sworn, states:

1. My name is Cliff Oxford, and I am competent in all
respects to testify regarding matters set forth herein. I give
this Affidavit voluntarily.

2. I was present at the Cobb County Democratic Breakfast held

the morning of Saturday March 9, 1996 at Kiefer's Restaurant. At
this breakfast meeting, I personally observed Michael Coles state
that he was running for Congress.

3. I was present at the Cherokee County Democratic Committee

* meeting on the evening of March 19, 1996. At this meeting, I
personally observed Michael Coles state that he was running for

04 Congress.

4. At Michael Coles' request, I met with him the morning of
Thursday March 28, 1996 at the Le Peep Restaurant on Windy Hill
Road in Cobb County, Georgia. During the course of this meeting,

NMr. Coles informed me that he had already spent in excess of
$50,000 on his campaign for Congress, that he would be putting an
additional $250,000 into his campaign later that day, and that he
had already caused two polls to be done and would have the results
of the second poll the following Tuesday, and that he had not yet
made or caused to be made any campaign filings related to his
campaign for Congress.

The foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge
and belief.

A CL'FJF 6 FbRD

Sworn to and subscribed before
me this .- th day of April, 1996.

N.ciry Public



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
~0on, DC 2043

April J1. J996

Cliff Oxfocd
1482 FallsbrO Court
Acworth, GA 30101

RE: MUR 4335

Dear Mr. Oxford:

4This letter aknowledges receipt on April 10, 1996, of your %omn plt alleging possble

violations of the Federal Election C i Act of 1971, as amended (*the Acto).

The respndens) will be notified of this complaint within five days.

You %ill be notified as soon a the Federal Election Co takes final action on

your complaint. Should you receive any a information in this matter, plme forward it

to the Office of the Gneral Comusel. Such informi on m ust be sworn to in the - manner
as the original complaint. We hmve numbered this matter MUR 4335. Pese efer to this

number in all futme commwaicafkms. For your infomation, we low attached a brief

description of the Commission's procedures for handling complaints.

Sincerely,

LosG. ere
Associate General Counsel

Fnclosure
Procedures



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
wantoom DC 20 3

April 11. 1996

Susm Knight Bentley, Tenmer
Coles for Congms i.
2450 Kirk Lane
Kennesaw, GA 30152

RE: MUR 4335

Dewr Ms. Knigbz

The Federal Electim Co received a compiint which indiCates that Coles for
Congress, inc. ("Committee) and yo, as tffaraw, may haw veoat the Federal Electim
Campaign Act of 1971, a amnded ("the Act). A co of the 2 1*matis enclosed- We lm
numbered this matter MUR 4335. Pemse rfer to this amba in all ftre ccrrespondeace.

Under d e Act, you hav the oppRtunity to demomr in witing tud m action should
be taken against the Committee and yo, a tV munxr, in this matter. m b mit my factual

C' or legal materials which you believe we relevant to the Commissions analysis of this matter.
Where appropriate, statements should be mbmnitted under oath. Your response, which should
be addressed to the Generl Counsel's OfIce, must be submitted within 15 days of receipt of
this letter. If no response is received within 15 days, the Commission may take further action

based on the available infonnation.

This matter %ill remain confidential in accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 437g(aX4XB) and

§ 437g(a) 12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be
made public. If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the
Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name. address and telephone number
of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other
communications from the Commission.
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If you have my q m e a men* ofEihSCU Raf --wnM Docket

at (202) 219-3400. For ya wfm , w haNN m a edlad ofs U
Comiso' psocadiwes hr milw COlsi

Sincely,

Anaoc isle, Geneal Counse

Enclour
1. Complaint
2. Pegatf C
3. Designation Of Counsel



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMSSION
wMoon. OC 20463

April 11. 1996

Mldini J. Coles
2450 Kirk Lane
Kennesaw, GA 30152

RE: MUR 4335

Dea Mr. Coles:

04 The Federal Election C received a complaint which indicates that you may

have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the Act-). A copy of

the complaint is enclosed. We have numbere this matter MUR 4335. Please refer to this

number in all future co.

Under the Act, you have the opp y o tm u in writig tha no action should

be taken aping you in tis mater. Please submit any factual or lepl maimials which you

believe e relevant to the Commission's analysis of this nma. Wbere poriae statment

C should be submitted under oath. Your response, which should be addressed to the General

Counsel's Office, must be submitted within 15 days of receipt of this letter. If no response is

received within 15 days, the Commission may take frther action based on the available

information.

This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 437g(aX4XB) and

§ 437g(a)(I 2XA) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be

made public. If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the

Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number

of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other

communications from the Commission.



If you 1mw my qu.mo1-, pla c amct a vm er of the Cearal Eft memc Docket
S(202) 219-3400. For yow i. u T have melosd a oinfducrision of da

Coffluision'S a jxc dures for bidwlag complaits

Sincerly,

Lois G.
Associate General Counsel

Endoure
3. Complaint
2. Procedures
3. Designation of Counsel Statement
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Lois G. Lerner
C4 Associate Geneia Counsel

Office of the General Counsel
FEDERAL ELECTON COMMISSION
999 E Stret, N.W.
Room 657
Washington, D.C. 20463

RE: M.U.R. 4335: RESFONDEITh COLES
KNIGHT BENTLEY, AS ASURER

FOR CONGRESS, INC. AND SUSAN

Y-11 Dear Ms. Le'ner:

Our firm has been retained to represent Coles for Congress, Inc. ('the Comittee') and Susan
Knight Bentley, as Treasurer ('the Respondents') in connectiob with the above-referenced matter. In
that regard, enclosed please find a Statement of Designation of Counsel which was executed on
Thursday, April 25, 1996 by Ms. Bentley, the Committee's Treasurer.

It is our understanding that our clients' response to the complaint is due to be filed with your
office by the close-of-business today. We respectfully request a twenty-day extension of time, until
May 20, 1996, in which to file a response to this meritless complaint. As our firm has only recently
been retained to represent Respondents in this matter, this extension-of-time is necessary for us to be
able to submit a complete and thorough response.

Thank you for your assistance. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me
at (202) 861-1877.

Sincerely,
N

Le-sie J. Kerman

-v 77'7
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MUir:

NAME OF COUNSEL:

A- ,

1227 251h &M-, N.W.. Sake 2M

WjAsngtm. D.C. 2007

10 mo -0 11 "5 F20I2731-iml

The bove-named individual is hereby designated as my coud ad is ud
ve n fication and other comm a from the Caimiuioa ta ct om n my behalf

bef e theCmma .

Date Signature

RESPONDE~T'S NAME: Coles for Coagress. ine. an_ Snun ni-_ht _Du. a

ADDRESS: 2617 Sandy Plains. #C

Marietta. Georgia 30066

HOME PHONE:

BUSINESS PHONE:

N/A

(770)0Q9-1

f.%TA j &#- OFjil (fiAYrNoN KO ZooBEI



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WOHINGTON. D.C 2o04 4

April 30. 1 9M
Lalie J. Kermn, Esquire
E Becker & (keen. P.C.
1227 25th Soo*. N.W., Suite 700
W o D.C. 20037

RE: MUR 4335
Coles for Congress, Inc.
Susan Knight Bentley, as treasurer

Dear Ms. Kerman:

This is in respoMe o your letter dated April 30, 1996. requesting an extnsion until
May 20, 1996, to respond o the complamnt filed in the above-noted matter. Afker considering
the .crc- 11 s prese ned fm yor letter, the Office of the General Counsel has panted the
rewosted extenion_ AcwriSaNly, your response is due by the close of business on May 20,
1996.

If you have any m please contact the Central Enforcement Docket at (202)
219-3400.

Sincerely,

Frances B Hlagan, Paralegal Specialist
Central Enforcement Docket

.- ~ VI ~* . *. . . gx~.
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June 5, 199

VIA FACSIMILE /19-3923)
& HAINAm

Ms. Franca B. Hain
Office of the Gen CounselFdrl Eloni Comalmic

999 E Stret, N.W.
Room 657
Washington, D.C. 20463

RE: M.U.R. 4335: RES ONDWNI'I COLES FOR CONGRESS, INC.
AND SUSAN KNIGHT BDETLEY, AS TREASURER

Dear Ms. Hagan:

I am writing to you in connection with the meritless complaint filed with your office on
April 10, 1996 by Cliff Oxford. Mr. Oxford is Michadel J. Coles' opponent in the July 9, 1996
primary for the Democratic nomination for Congress from Georgia's Sixth District.

Coles for Congress, Inc. and Susan Knight Bentley, as Treasurer (collectively *the
Committee"), flatly denies the allegations set forth in the complaint. The Committee submits
that its filings with the Commission to date are accurate, timely and complete. As the
Committee's April 15, 1996 Quarterly Report (and amendment thereto of April 22, 1996)
reflect, the Committee's first receipts were two in-kind loans from the candidate Michael J.
Coles on March 25, 1996. The Committee's Statement of Organization, as well as Mr. Coles'
Stateme s of Candidacy, were then filed on April 1, 1996 (postmark date) -- well within the time
period prescribed by the Commission's regulations. Mr. Oxford's unsubstantiated charges
concerning other financial activity by the Committee in the first quarter of 1996 -- including
alleged large expenditures/contributions by Mr. Coles -- are false.

CA"ill

t2e

TWE.PP;Vr i- T- .- --I.. , - .



d C mittee dudsst the Cominion vreW Ii o ...... .bu-, with

a* ID Ibb Wknr.

lnm do OM heSitMe to contact me at 202/861 -177 if you have any q71im T k
y" for yaw auace with this matter.

Sincerely,

Leslie J. Kerman
Coune
Coics for Congress, I=c. and Susan KnightDk iy as Tnaer
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hume 19, 1996

Frncm B.t a
r Offi of e Comel

FEDERAL LBMMON WSSION
999 E Steet, N.W.
Room 657
wAPIig, D.C. 2063

It KOO%0M~r:

AIL=

RE: M.U.L 433 R NDDJT MKHARL J. COLES

Dear Ms. Hmn:

Enclosed plais find a t t of Designation of Counsel for Michael 3. Coles in the above-
referenced matter. The Statement contains the ouiginal signature of Mr. Coles. This Stmnt was
received this morning by our office.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Enclosure (1)
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Ms. Frances B. HW
Office of the (m Comad
Federal Ekeclk n 11 Y~d*
99 E setg N.W.
Room 657
Waiangvon, D.C. 20463

e M.UJL 4335: 1115ONET MICHAM J. COLES

Dear Ms. Hagan:

This constitutes the respone of Michael J. Coles to the meritless complaint filed with your
office by Cliff Oxford. Mr. Oxford is Mr. Coles' op et in the July 9, 1996 primary for the
Democratic nominatio for Co4res from Gemrgia's Sixth District.

The complaint alleges that Mr. Coles violated the provison of the Federal Election Campaign
Act ("the Act"): "(I) by failing to designate a campaign committee within 15 days after he became a
candidate for Congress, (2) by failing to cause such a principal campaign committee to register with
the Commission by filing a Statement of Organization, (3) by failing to establish a separate campaign
checking account for the deposit of campaign receipts and the payment of campaign expenditures, (4)
by commingling campaign funds and personal funds, and (5) by not having a legally qualified
campaign committee as of March 31, 1996 and thereby violating the requirement to file a report of
campaign contributions and expenditures for the first calendar quarter of the 1996 election year, during
which time he was a candidate for Congress." Mr. Coles flatly denies these unsubstantiated
allegations.



Ms. Prances B. Hagan
July 1, 1996
Page Two

1. ALLEGATION REGARDING FIIJNG OF STATEMENT OF CANDIDACY

Mr. Coles filed his Statement of Candidacy in a timely fashion. Specifically, Mr. Coin igned
his Statement of Candidacy on March 29, 1996. The Statement then was mailed to the Houe Ofc
of Records and Registration ('the House') via first-clas mail, postmarked April 1, 1996. Th
Statement was received by the Commission from the House on April 5, 1996. Se Attachment A.

Mr. Oxford appears to allege that Mr. Coles became a 'candidate" under the Act prior to
March 21, 1996 (i.e., fiftee days prior to the receipt of Mr. Coles' Statement of Candidacy by the
Commission). This is simply false. Neither Mr. Coles nor his campaign committee received am
expended more than $5,000 prior to March 21, 1996. Mr. Coles' first campaign-related diubmemis
were both made on March 25, 1996 - a payment of $26,320.00 to Cooper & Secrest for a benchmaIo
assesment poll (a "testing-the-waters' expeise designed to assist Mr. Coles in deciding whetho' to
become a congressional candidate) and another "testing-the-waters' payment in connection with air
transportation to Washington, D.C. to attend several meetings to discuss a possible House candidacy.

0 S= Attachment B, copies of invoices from Coopers & Secrest Associates, Inc. for benchumrk
assessment poll.

0Mr. Coles absolutely did not decide to become a candidate until sometime after March 24, 1996
(the field date of the benchmark poll). His activity prior to his late March/early April, 1996 decision
to become a candidate was strictly "testing-the-waters" activity, as permitted by the Act and the
Commission's regulations. Notwithstanding the self-serving submissions of Mr. Oxford and his
political allies, to the best of his recollection Mr. Coles did not make any statements prior to March
21, 1996 in which he affirmatively referred to himself as a candidate, as opposed to a podible
candidate.

2. ALLEGATION REGARDING FILING OF STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION

This allegation is meritless. Coles for Congress, Inc. ('the Committee') filed its Statement of
Organization on the same day that Mr. Coles filed his Statement of Candidacy, which was well before
the Statement of Organization was required to be filed under the Act. Sg Attachment C.

3. ALLEGATIONS REGARDING CAMPAIGN CHECKING ACCOUNT AND
COMMINGLING OF FUNDS

These allegations, for which Mr. Oxford provides no evidence whatu,,scr, are meritless and
irresponsible. Upon its inception, the Committee established a campaign checking account for
campaign receipts and disbursements. Moreover. Mr. Coles ne ,r comTminglcd his personai funds
with campaign contnibutions.

4. ALLEGATION REGARDING FIRST QUARTER, 1996 FE( RVI1)R I

As it was not registered with the Commission until after March 31. I Q tic {*,Cmmjtec was
not required to file a First Quarter, 1996 FEC Report. However, in the intercst of full dalosur, the
Committee voluntarily filed a First Quarter. FEC 19,)6 Report prior it, IIIc \ptri VS lI$)0 filing
deadline. Thus. Mr. Oxford's allegation is baseless.
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FIRST ENERAL C~UqL'S R OT SENITImV
MUR: 4335
DATE COMPLANT FIL 4/1096
DATE OF -OT1ICATMOH: 41 1196
DATE ACTIVATED, 5/386

STAFF : Frances B. Hapn

COMPLAINANT: Cliff Oxford

RESPONDENTS: Coles for Congres, Inc.
Susan Knigsi Bentley, Treasuer
Michael J. Coles

RELEVANT STATUTES: 2 U.S.C. ff 433 and 434
2 U.S.C. 9432(b)
2 U.S.C. 1432(c)
2 U.S.C. 9432(h)

INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKE D lo Idexes an Repods

FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED. None

L GENERATION OF MATTER

Complainant Cliff Oxford, candidate for U.S. House of Representatives in the Sixth

Congressional District of Georgia, alleges that his primary election opponen Michael J. Coles

became a candidate as early as February 1996, but failed to file a Statement of Candidacy or

register a political commine. Complainant alleges that Mr. Coles asserted his candidate status

privately to an individual on or about February 19, 1996, and publicly at two local Democratic

Party meetings on March 9 and 19, 1996 Complainant provided four sworn affidavits

Michael J Coles ' on the primarN election held July 9. 19%. earnenng 86% of the vote



2

(iluding his own) attesting that on those des, Mr. Cole swed he was "rmin for

Conrs" Complainant alleges that Mr. Coks hired political con untst and c p SUN in

late Februay or early March and conducted two political polls, thereby triggein the $5,000

threshold for candidacy.

Complainant alleges that Mr. Coles failed to designate a campaign 3, ad that

by making "extensive campaign expenitures" from personal fimds, Mr. Coles coumingled

campaign funds with personal funds. Complainant further alleges that Mr. Coles failed to

register a political committee and report receipts and expenditures.

EL FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

2 U.S.C. § 432(e) requires that a candidate designate a principal campaign cmnitlee

within 15 days ofbecoming a candidate. 2 U.S.C. § 431(2) states that an individual becomes a

candidate by receiving contributions or making expenditures aggregating in excess of S5,000.

Commission Regulations exempt from the definition of "contribution" or "expenduWe famds

received or payments made "solely for the purpose of determining whether an individual should

C7" become a candidate." If the individual subsequently becomes a candidate, such receipts and

payments are subject to the reporting requirements of the Act. I1 C.F.R. §§ l00.7(bXlXi) and

100.8(bX I Xi). This exemption does not apply when an individual has decided to become a

candidate. II C F R. §§ 100 7(b( I XUi) and 100.8(bX I Xii). One way an individual indicates that

such a decision has been made is to make statements that refer to him or her as a candidate for a

particular offlice. I C FR § § 100.7(b)X IXIIXC) and 100.8(bXI XiiXC).
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II C.F.R. 100.8(aX2) states that a writen carac including a media CO d

or apement to make an ependiture is a expenditwe as of the det such cwmb, promie or

obliation is made.

2 U.S.C. § 433 requires registration by a political committee. 2 U.S.C. j 431(4XA) defines

the term *political committee" as any committee, club, association, or other group of pesonas

that receives contributions or makes xpendit'es in excess of S 1,000 during a calendar year.

2 U.S.C. § 434 requires that a political committee file reports of receipts and expediturs

2 U.S.C. 432(h) requires that a political committee designate a campaign depsitoy. 2 U.S.C.

9 432(bX3) requires that all campaign funds be segregated from personal funds of an individual.

FEC records show that on April 5, 1996, Mr. Coles filed a Statement of Candidacy, and

his principal campaign committee filed a Statement of Organization. Counsel for respondents

Nz_ asserts that these first filings were timely and that all complainant's allegatios are meridess"

Counsel for respondents labels the early expenses "testing-the-watrs," beginng with the first

polling disbursements dated March 25, 1996. However, Mr. Coles does not counta" the

affidavits regarding his previous verbal statements of candidacy with a sworn statement of his

own. Counsel simply notes "'to the best of his recollection Mr. Coles did not make any

statements prior to March 21, 1996 in which he affirmatively referred to himself as a candidate.

.. "- According to the response, Mr. Coles "absolutely did not decide to become a candidate

until sometime after March 24, 1996

A Coles for Congress, Inc ("Commitee") quarterly report filed %ith the FEC on Apnl

18. 1Q96. and amended Apnl 23. 1996. indicates the candidate initially funded his new

M arch 21 o')t, is I" da\s before ihe Statement ('andidac\ %,.as filed "ih ihe FEC on 4,r:9f3
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Commite by mking peuonal lon wait 32,06.56 in t f m of py.mes 0 vINdos, In

memo entries itemizing: these paymeus, the amwded report shows that on Mwch 25, 1996, Mr.

Coles made the first ex-nditure for the Commite, psyg the political consultng firm Cooper

& Secrest Associates, Inc.. $26,520 for "opinion reearch" However, an invoice for $1 5,550.00

from the consulting firm establse March II, 1996, as the initial agieent date for

professional polling serices. Se I I C.F.R. § 100.8(aX2). 3 Additional invoices to the same

firm for travel and polling are damtd March 14 and 22, 1996. Attachment B, pp. 6-8.

Based on this evidence, the campaign's contrNitions and expenditures exceeded $5,000

by March 11, 1996, thereby triggering the requirement to designate a principal campaign

committee within 15 da)., absent a determination that Mr. Coles was merely "testing the waters"

at that time. Given the affidavits averring that Mr. Coles referred to himself as a candidate, and

the lack of a sworn rebuttal tement, it appeas that Mr.Coles became a candidate earlier than

counsel contends. 2 U.S.C. §§ 432(e) and 431(2). See also II C.F.R. § 101.1(a). Therie&r, a

Statement of Candidacy designating a principal campaign committee was due by March 26,

1996. Because the candidate and Committee failed to timely register and file the required

reports, it appears that respondent Michael J Coles violated 2 U S.C. § 432(e), and the Coles for

Congress Committee, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433, and

4344 However. as the respondents have since filed the reports (although apparently 10 days

late), and considerable resources would be necessary to reconcile the precise date of candidacy,

Ak'.o on 3 2; Qt, Mr Coles paid Doug \1urlph 'Future Care Consultants, Inc . S4,SOO as "ad~ance
relIburscrx"nt for use of corpcrate plane pa\Tment in excess of FIC Revulatons ""

4 The alleva:ion conceinizn : I S C S 4121h) is eonipa-.d in the violation of Section 41;. rewardine the
tard\ desirtatiu-n of a :arnfpasn depnsor



SOfice the e Counel recomends tht the o im fd awn to beli tht

t violation occurred, but take no fluther action repding thkm. We wil include an

admonition in the notification letter.

In addition, as the Committee reported only in-kind receipS, and the reputd

expenditures were made from the candidate's personal funds, there is no apparent commingling

of Committee funds with personal fuid. Thus, we recommend that the Commission find no

reason to believe that the Committee and its treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. I 432(bX3). Finally, this

Office recommends that the Commission close the file in this matter.

UL RECOMMENDAT!ONS

1. Find reason to believe that Michael J. Coles violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(e), but take
no further action.

CN4
2. Find reason to believe that Coles for Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, as

treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, but take no furter acthion.

3. Find no reason to believe that Coles for Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley,

as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(bX3).

4 Approve the appropriate letter.

5. Close the file.

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

BY,___

Da te Lois 6 Lerr-
Associate General Counsel

Attachments

A Committec response
B Candidate response
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In the Nsttez of

Oles for Camgxe's, Inc. and
Ows= KniLht Bentley, Treasurer;
i ba2 7. Coles.

UM ~4335

x, Nmazjorie W. Imons, Secretary of the Federal Niection

Ca iseio, do hereby certify that oan August 7, 1996. the

Cmission decided by a vote of S-0 to take the follmng

actions in UW 4335:

1. rind reason to believe that Michael .7. Cole.
violated 2 U.s.C. 5 432(e), but take no
further action.

2. Find reason to believe that Coles for
Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, an
treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. 55 433 and 434,
but take no further action.

3. Find no reason to believe that Coles for
Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, as
treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C I 432(b)(3).

(continued)



Pederal Sleotion C=Mision par
Certification for NOR 4335
August 7, 1996

4. Approve the apropriate letter, as
rec----ed in the -- Corael*$ Report
dated August 1, 1996.

5. Close the file.

Ccamissioers ALkems, Ulliott, MoDomald, IVary. and

Thomas voted affizImtively for the decision.
t4

Attest:

Received in the Secretariat: Fri., August 2, 1996
Circulated to the Comission: Fri., August 2, 1996
Deadline for vote: Wed., August 7, 1996

9:25 a.m.
12: 00 p.m.
4:00 p.m.

bjr

, . ,, "qq .

3? -- VIA
Date7 -



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
wASI lN D.C. 20,13

August 10. 19fI

CERTIFiiMAIL
RETURN RF"Ar R IRMlS

Mr. Cliff Oxford
1482 Fallsbrook Court
Acworth, GA 30101

RE: MUR 4335
Michael J. Coles
Coles for Congress, Inc.
Susan Knight Bentley, as treasmer

Dear Mr. Oxford:

This is in refenmce to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on
April 10, 1996, ancerning Michael J. Coles, Coles for Congress, Inc. and Susan Knight Bentley,
as treasurer.

Based on that complaint, on August 7,1996, the Commission found that there was reason
to believe Michael J. Coles violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(e), a provision of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, and instituted an investigation of this matter. At the same
time, the Commission found reason to believe that Coles for Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight
Bentley, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434. However, after considering the
circumstances of this matter, the Commission determined to take no further action against the
respondents, and closed the file in this matter on August 7, 1996. In addition, the Commission
found no reason to believe that Coles for Congress, Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, as treasurer,
violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(bX3).

I ( RD T I l A Nr)T ( ,'A( )k ~R(
AJ fTE 70 KF EPtN.( 1 M P Rt W If~ )R >



W. Cliff wdPas

Ths -Mn will become pat of the public record within 30 days The Fimul Election
Cumpaip Act of 1971 as imen Aed, allows a complainant to seek judicial eview of the
Cmmienonss dismissal ofthis action. So 2 U.S.C. § 437g(aX8).

Ifyou have any queion, please contact me at (202) 219-3400.

Sincerely,

Frances B. Hagan+
Paralegal Specialist

Enclorwe:
Genera Counselfs Repot

'7"



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WA HWIGVO. DC 20*3

August 20. 19M

Leslie J. Kemum Esquire
Eposein Becker & Oreem P.C.
1227 25th Street, N.W., Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20037

RE: MUR 4335
Michael J. Coles
Coles for Congess, Inc.
Susan Knig t Bentley, Treasurer

Dear Ms. Keman:

On August 7,1996, the Federal Election Commission found reason to believe that your
client, Michael J. Coles, violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(e), a provision of the Federal Elctio
Campaign Act of 1971, as mnended ("the Act"). At the same time, the Commission found reason

to believe that Coles for Congres Inc., and Susan Knight Bentley, as treasurer, violed

2 U.S.C. §1 433 and 434. However, after considering the circun1a1ces of this mamr, the

Commission also d to take no further action regarding these issues In addti the

Commission found no reaon to believe that Coles for Congress, Inc., and Susm Knight Bentley,
as treasura, violat 2 U.S.C. § 432(bX3) and closed its file. The General Counsel's Report

which formed a basis for the Commission's finding is attached for your information.

The Commission reminds you that failure to timely file a Statement of Candidacy or to

timely register and file the required reports is a iolation of 2 U.S.C. §§ 432(e), 433 and 434.
Your clients should take steps to ensure that this activity does not occur in the future.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(aX12) no longer apply and this matter

is now public. In addition, although the complete file must be placed on the public record within
30 days, this could occur at any time folloAing certification of the Commission's vote. If you
wish to submit any factual or legal materials to appear on the public record, please do so as soon
as possible. While the file may be placed on the public record before receiving your additional

materials, any permissible submissions % ill be added to the public record upon receipt.
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Enclosure:
General Counsel's Repot

Ledie J. Ke .M I

If you have any quhPm ogs Fhmu 3.Hs.1q, Use mmbe asp w
this maner, at (202) 219-3400.

Sine"Y,

Lee Am~ Elliott
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